Petitioner.

vs.

CATHERINE M. MARCOUX,

Respondent.

District Court of Appeals, Fourth District

Case No. 83-361

PETITIONER'S INITIAL BRIEF

Gary L. Rudolf, Esq. English, McCaughan & O'Bryan (Attorneys for Petitioner) 301 East Las Olas Boulevard Post Office Box 14098 Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33302-4098 (305) 462-3301

STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

On June 11, 1981, Respondent, herein, CATHERINE M. MARCOUX, (Petitioner in the trial court, Appellee/Cross-Appellant in the District Court, and hereinafter referred to as the Wife) filed a Petition for Dissolution of Marriage against the Petitioner herein, RONALD L. MARCOUX, (Respondent/Counter-Petitioner in the trial court, Appellant/Cross-Appellee in the District Court, and hereinafter referred to as the Husband) seeking, <u>inter alia</u>, a dissolution of the parties' marriage, custody of the parties' two minor children, lump sum alimony for an equitable distribution of marital assets, special equities, permanent periodic alimony and child support. (R-98-101)^{*} Various and sundry motions, discovery and other pleading were filed and proceedings had thereon, none of which is germane to the issues involved in this appeal.

The facts of this case have been set forth with particularity by the Fourth District Court of Appeal in its "reluctant" per curiam affirmance (see Appendix). The following is nonetheless a brief review of the facts and evidence

-1-

^{*}References to the Record on Appeal will be identified as "R" with the page number following. References to the trial transcript will be designated as "TR" with the page number following relating to the originally numbered pages in the three volumes of the transcript.

elicited at the trial court and reviewed by the appellate court.

1. The parties were married on December 7, 1968, in Hollywood, Florida, and separated shortly before the Wife filed her initial Petition when the Wife requested the Husband to vacate their marital domicile. The Husband was 18 years old, and the Wife 17, at the time of marriage, and neither had any assets at the time. The parties had met in high school, and both have high school degrees only. They have two children, Ronald Marcoux, born July 2, 1969, and Tamara Ann Marcoux, born April 17, 1971.

2. The Wife worked miscellaneous jobs during the marriage, the last time as a bank teller for approximately seven months in 1977. The Husband began as a carpenter, and worked as such for seven years. He then met John Draughon, with whom he became a partner. Ultimately, in 1979, they incorporated their interior contracting business as a Florida corporation.

3. The Final Hearing in this matter was heard before the Court on May 10, 1982, June 7 and June 11, 1982. At the time of the Final Hearing, the Wife was 31 years old and in excellent health.

4. The parties had acquired, as a tenancy by the entirety, the marital residence, a four bedroom single family residence with swimming pool, with an agreed-upon

-2-

0963P

fair market value of \$129,000.00, and encumbered by a mortgage with a principal balance of approximately \$76,000.00, yielding a net equity of \$53,000.00.

5. The Husband, in his own name, owned 50% of the issued and outstanding shares of stock in three inter-connected corporations, Draughon & Marcoux, Inc., Draughon & Marcoux Interior Contractors, Inc. and Draughon & Marcoux Investments, Inc. In addition, the Husband owned 1/3 of the outstanding shares of stock in Bella Vista Properties, Inc., its only asset being a four-unit apartment building.

6. The Wife's real estate appraiser valued the Bella Vista property at \$160,000.00, and there was a mortgage outstanding in the sum of \$6,000.00, yielding a net equity of \$154,000.00, with the Husband's share therefore valued at \$51,333.33.

7. Draughon & Marcoux Investments, Inc., is the fee simple owner of an undivided 1/3 interest in four parcels of unimproved realty, with an agreed fair market value of \$176,000.00. The Husband's interest in the corporation is therefore \$29,333.33.

8. Draughon & Marcoux Interior Contractors, Inc., has no value. The corporation is used only when non-unionized interior contracting services are required, and both parties recognized that the Husband's shares of stock in this corporation could not be independently valued from Draughon & Marcoux, Inc.

0963P

-3-

9. The parties differed widely in their appraisal of the fair market value of Draughon & Marcoux, Inc. The corporation began as a Subchapter S Corporation in fiscal year 1979, (ending September 30, 1979) and then converted, after year-end September 30, 1980, to a regular corporation. At the time of the Final Hearing, it had been in existence for three and one-half years. It was admitted that 1980 was the corporation's best year, due to business created through contacts of John Draughon, and that the corporation had had between 25 and 60 employees that year. However, it was undisputed that the interior contracting business in Broward County, Florida, had swiftly deteriorated after 1980, and the corporation only had four employees at the time of the Final Hearing, including John Draughon and Ron Marcoux.

10. If the company were liquidated, both of the parties' accountants agreed that Ron Marcoux would receive only approximately \$80,000.00 before taxes. This, the Husband argues, is the value of his interest, less taxes payable, in this corporation, which value was substantiated by the corporation's certified public accountant and the Husband's partner/co-stock owner. From this liquidation amount, the Husband, according to his accountant, would have to pay approximately \$30,000.00 in income tax, leaving a net value of \$50,000.00.

0963P

-4-

11. The Wife's accountant for the trial ultimately agreed that the corporation's book value was \$160,000.00, but valued the business with good will at \$585,000.00, concluding that the Husband's interest in the business was worth \$292,500.00.

12. In addition to the marital residence and the Husband's business interests, the parties had accumulated only \$5,000.00 in savings, which the Wife unilaterally withdrew immediately after the parties separated. This was despite the fact that the Husband continued to give her his paychecks from the business. The parties also owned furnishings and accessories in the marital residence which had been recently purchased, from 1979 through June 1, 1981, for a total purchase price when new of approximately \$20,000.00. They owned other miscellaneous property. including automobiles, and the Husband's coin collection, but had not amassed any significant savings in either bank accounts or securities.

13. The total net value of all assets accumulated during the marriage, including the marital residence (\$53,000.00), its furnishings (\$20,000.00), the parties' savings (\$5,000.00) and the Husband's various business holdings (\$51,333.33 \$29,333.33 \$50,000.00 = \$130,666.66) was \$208,666.66.

0963P

The Final Judgment of Dissolution of Marriage, 14. (R-297-300), dated November 22, 1982 (a full five months after the last day of Final Hearing) awarded, among other things, the Wife the marital residence and its furnishing and accessories, and \$100,000.00 lump sum alimony payable at the rate of \$10,000.00 per year with accumulated interest on the declining balance at the rate of 8% payable yearly, for The Wife was therefore awarded \$173,000.00, out 10 years. of the total marital assets valued at \$208,666.66, or over 82% of all the assets accumulated during the marriage. If the interest on the unpaid principal balance is added to this amount, the Wife will receive an additional \$44,000.00 over the ten year period, for over 100% of all assets accumulated during the marriage.

15. The Husband's income throughout the marriage was, at times, insufficient to support the parties. During these periods, the Wife would work to supplement their income. After the Husband began his partnership with John Draughon, the parties' financial situation did improve. At its pinnacle in 1980, the Husband earned \$160,000.00. This amount, as reflected on the parties' 1040 return, is deceptive. In 1980, Draughon & Marcoux, Inc., was a Subchapter S Corporation, and thus all its income had to be passed along to its shareholders. However, the corporation did not have sufficient funds to make this distribution of income and thus a

-6-

paper transaction was performed and Ron Marcoux received a check for \$110,000.00 and immediately wrote a check back to the company for this amount. This was undisputed at Final Hearing. Thus, the parties' disposable income in 1980, their best year, was only approximately \$50,000.00 before taxes. In actuality, the parties averaged a gross income of approximately \$60,000.00 a year for 1979, 1980 and 1981. However, 1979 is also a deceptive year as approximately \$13,000.00 is attributable to the sale of their prior home. At the time of Final Hearing, Draughon & Marcoux, Inc., could not even afford to pay salary, and the Husband and his partner were merely taking drawers against future salary. The Husband's accountant estimated the Husband's income for 1982 at approximately \$40,000.00, (TR-407).

16. The parties never lived a lavish lifestyle. Their entertainment consisted of bowling and occasional nights out at The Sizzler Steak House or Denny's (TR-305). Prior to 1979, the Wife herself said the parties lived "modestly." (TR-305). They went on vacations by driving to the Smokey Mountains or New York, certainly not an extravagant or upper-income lifestyle.

17. Notwithstanding a marriage of only thirteen year duration, with modest income and standard of living, and the Wife 31 years of age in excellent health, the Final Judgment

0963P

-7-

Dissolving Marriage awarded the Wife permanent periodic alimony in the sum of \$1,250.00 per month. The trial court also awarded the Wife \$500.00 per month child support, ordered that the Husband continue certain life insurance policies, and ordered that the Wife have sole custody of the parties' minor children.

18. Subsequently, the Husband filed a Motion for ReHearing, or for Reconsideration of the Final Judgment of Dissolution of Marriage alleging, <u>inter alia</u>, that the trial court erred in awarding the Wife well over one-half of all assets accumulated during the marriage, interest on the pecuniary lump sum alimony award, permanent periodic alimony, and sole custody of the minor children to the Wife rather than shared parental responsibility. The Wife likewise filed a Motion for ReHearing.

19. On February 8, 1983, the trial court denied both parties' Motions for Re-Hearing, awarded the Wife's attorney \$6,500.00 as attorneys' fees, \$2,500.00 for the Wife's accountant's fees and \$650.00 for her real estate appraiser, for a total of \$9,650.00 to be paid by the Husband, as well as reserving jurisdiction to assess and award costs. It is from this Order that the Husband timely filed his Notice of Appeal.

20. Viewed in its entirety, the trial court's awards to the Wife required the Husband to pay to her in the first

0963P

-8-

year after the Final Judgment \$15,000.00 permanent periodic alimony, \$6,000.00 child support, \$18,000.00 representing \$10,000.00 of the lump sum award plus 8% interest, \$9,650.00 in attorneys' fees and suit money, for a total payment on behalf of the Wife of \$48,650.00. This sum does not even include the cost to the Husband of maintaining insurance for the benefit of the Wife and minor children, nor does it take into consideration the tax consequences to the Husband of the unequal division of the parties' assets.

All three members of the panel of the appellate court concurred that the Husband had been "shortchanged," and in so finding from a review of the record, the Court determined, pursuant to the scope of appellate review enunciated in <u>Canakaris</u>, <u>infra</u>, that the trial court abused its discretion. Nonetheless, the appellate court felt constrained by this Court's recent decisions to remedy an apparent abuse of trial court discretion, and certified the following question to this Court as one of great public importance:

> DO <u>CONNER V. CONNER</u> . . . AND <u>KUVIN V.</u> <u>KUVIN</u> . . . LIMIT THE SCOPE OF APPELLATE REVIEW ENUNCIATED IN <u>CANAKARIS V.</u> <u>CANAKARIS</u> . . .?

The Husband has filed his Notice to Invoke Discretionary Jurisdiction on the certified question, and this Court has ordered the parties to serve briefs going to the merits.

0963P

-9-

ARGUMENT

DO <u>CONNER V. CONNER</u>, 439 So.2d 887 (Fla. 1983) AND <u>KUVIN V. KUVIN</u>, 442 So.2d 203 (Fla. 1983), LIMIT THE SCOPE OF APPELLATE REVIEW ENUNCIATED IN <u>CANAKARIS V.</u> CANAKARIS, 382 So.2d 1197 (Fla. 1980)?

The Husband appealed the trial court's Final Judgment of Dissolution of Marriage (and Order denying both parties' Motions for Re-Hearing) and argued, <u>inter alia</u>, that the trial court abused its discretion in its "equitable distribution award", grant of permanent alimony (and the amount thereof) and in ordering the Husband to pay the Wife's attorney's fees and suit money. In essence, the Husband argued that he was "shortchanged", citing the now landmark decision of this Court in <u>Canakaris v. Canakaris</u>, 382 So.2d 1197 (Fla. 1980), wherein it is stated:

> . . . a trial judge must ensure that neither spouse passes automatically from misfortune to prosperity or from prosperity to misfortune, and, in viewing the totality of the circumstances, one spouse should not be "shortchanged." (<u>Id.</u> at 1204.)

In consequence of this Court's decision in <u>Canakaris</u>, trial courts have a new vehicle for doing equity and justice between spouses when dissolving the "marital partnership." By ushering in the concept of equitable distribution of assets acquired during the marriage, no longer is it neces-

sary to prove need in order for a spouse to receive lump sum alimony, and assets can now be equitably apportioned based upon justification. Thus, the various options available to the trier-of-fact in resolving the division of marital assets and providing for necessary support were greatly expanded. However, it is equally clear from the <u>Canakaris</u> decision that the trial court's discretionary power, subject to the test of reasonableness, requires "logic and justification" for the result. Therefore, it was noted that all the remedies (options) to be considered by the trial court are interrelated and part of one overall scheme. "It is extremely important that they also be reviewed by appellate courts as a whole, rather than independently." (<u>Id</u>. at 1202.)¹

In addition to re-defining and expanding the various options available to the trier-offact in resolving such questions, <u>Canakaris</u> also <u>enlarged the trial court's discretion</u> over such matters, while concomitantly <u>narrowing the scope of appellate review</u> by adopting the "reasonableness" test of abuse of discretion. (<u>Id</u>. at 1037; emphasis in original).

¹Some commentators have argued that this Court's decision in <u>Canakaris</u> has placed new limits on the scope of appellate review, and at least one District Court has concurred in this viewpoint; thus, in <u>Zediker v. Zediker</u>, 444 So.2d 1034 (Fla. 1st DCA 1984), the Court opined:

In the case at hand, after reviewing the facts and record on appeal, all three justices of the Fourth District Court of Appeal found that the Husband had been shortchanged. Nonetheless, Justices Beranek and Hersey concluded:

> . . . we must reluctantly affirm because of the recent Supreme Court decision in Conner v. Conner, 439 So.2d 887 (Fla. 1983). That case holds that a determination that a party has been "shortchanged" is an issue of fact and not one of law and that a District Court exceeds its scope of appellate review in making such <u>a determination</u>. To the same effect is the most recent case of Kuvin v. Kuvin, . . . where the Supreme Court reversed the Third District Court of Appeal based on the test of whether the judgment is supported by competent evidence. In doing so the Supreme Court noted that the role of the trial court is to determine alimony based on ability of the husband, need of the wife, and "the best interests of the parties." If our scope of review does not encompass a review of the facts to determine that a party has been short-changed, then we question our role in dissolution cases. (9 FLW 479; emphasis added).

Justice Letts concurred in the decision to certify the question herein and in the belief that the Husband was "shortchanged", but in any event would have reversed the trial court. He recognized, however, the limitation on the scope of appellate review seemingly set forth in the <u>Conner</u> and <u>Kuvin</u> decisions, noting that, in his words, "the <u>Canakaris-Conner-Kuvin</u> triology has collectively put the

0963P

-12-

District Courts on notice that the judgments of trial judges are all but irreversible in domestic cases."²

²It is interesting to note that in an opinion filed the same same day the Fourth District Court, consisting of a different panel (with the opinion written by the trial judge in the case <u>sub judice</u> sitting as Adjunct Justice) did not feel so constrained by the <u>Conner</u> and <u>Kuvin</u> decisions, and reversed the trial court award of lump sum alimony to the wife, finding it error (and, apparently, an abuse of discretion) not to award her permanent periodic alimony: <u>Marshall</u> <u>V. Marshall</u>, <u>So.2d</u>, Case No. 82-1820 (Fla. 4th DCA February 29, 1984), 9 FLW 480. Justice Letts specially concurred in the modification of the lower court judgment, but, citing <u>Canakaris</u>, <u>Conner</u> and <u>Kuvin</u>, <u>supra</u>, opined:

[O]ur Supreme Court has, at least arguably put the District Courts on notice that the decisions of trial judges in domestic cases are all but irreversible. The statement in <u>Canakaris</u> that an abuse of discretion only occurs when "no reasonable man would take the view adopted by the trial court," Id. 1203, is chilling, but not necessarily dispositive, because any district court panel supposedly composed of three "reasonable" men can take the position that no reasonable man would have done what the unreasonable trial judge did. However, the statement in Conner that if one party or the other is "shortchanged [that] is an issue of fact and not one of law" and therefore within the trial court's discretion is a horse of guite another color. The two sizable dictionaries in my office define "short-change" as the giving of less than the correct amount or cheating. If a trial judge awards an incorrect amount to the wife or cheats her, surely that is an abuse of discretion. Ι certainly hope so. (9 FLW at 481.)

-13-

The Fourth District Court's interpretation of the <u>Conner</u> and <u>Kuvin</u> decisions is understandable based upon their apparent conflict with the scope of appellate review enunciated in <u>Canakaris</u>. In <u>Canakaris</u>, <u>supra</u>, this Court quoted with approval from Justice Cardozo's treatise, "The Nature of Judicial Process":

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