IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

CASE NO. 65,078

RONALD L. MARCOUX,

PETITIONER,

D

11 1984

URT

SUPREME

Chief Deputy Clerk

MA

CLERK

VS.

CATHERINE M. MARCOUX,

Respondent.

DISTRICT COURT OF APPEALS, FOURTH DISTRICT

Case No. 83-361

RESPONDENT'S ANSWER BRIEF

William I. Zimmerman, P.A. Attorney for Respondent 2745 East Atlantic Boulevard Pompano Beach, Florida 33062 (305) 941-5110

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

This is a Dissolution of Marriage action instituted by the Wife (Respondent Herein and referred to as Wife Hereinafter) on June 16, 1981. By her Petition the Wife sought the Dissolution of the Marriage, temporary, permanent, and lump sum alimony, and equitable distribution of marital assets, temporary and permanent attorney's fees and costs, title and possession of the home premises, special equities, custody and support for the minor children, and injunctive relief.

The Husband (Petitioner Herein and Referred to as Husband Hereinafter) answered the Petition on July 8, 1981 seeking an equitable division of jointly owned properties and/or partition, liberal visitation rights with the children, an adjudication of the Liabilities of the parties, and a Dissolution of the Marriage. The Husband amended his Answer to seek a partition of the jointly held marital home thereby placing the matter at issue.

GREAT EFFORTS WERE EXPENDED BY THE WIFE TO OBTAIN DISCOVERY IN THE CASE WHICH WAS NEVER FULLY SATISFACTORY TO THE WIFE.

The action was heard before the Honorable J. Cail Lee in the Broward County Circuit Court on May 10, 1982, June 7, 1982, and June 11, 1982.

-1-

ON NOVEMBER 22, 1982, THE LEARNED TRIAL JUDGE ENTERED HIS FINAL JUDGMENT DISSOLVING THE MARRIAGE OF THE PARTIES. EACH PARTY FILED A MOTION FOR REHEARING ADDRESSED TO THE FINAL JUDGMENT WHICH MOTIONS WERE DENIED BY THE TRIAL COURT IN ITS ORDER DATED FEBRUARY 8, 1983.

The Husband timely filed his Notice of Appeal directed to the Final Judgment dissolving the marriage and the Order denying the parties Motions For Rehearing and the Husband cited as error the Trial Court's "equitable" distribution of assets, the Trial Court's award to the Wife of permanent periodic alimony, the Trial Court's award of attorney's fees and costs to the Wife, and the Trial Court's award of sole custody of the minor children to the Wife instead of shared parenting.

The Wife filed her Notice of Cross-Appeal and cited as error the Trial Court's award of an interest rate on the lump sum award to the Wife of eight percent (8%) rather than the legal rate of twelve percent (12%), and the Trial Court's automatic reduction of permanent periodic alimony to the Wife at the time the children Attained majority.

THE FOURTH DISTRICT COURT OF APPEALS AFFIRMED THE DECISION OF THE TRIAL COURT WITH A DISSENTING VOTE. THE FOURTH DISTRICT COURT

-2-

OF APPEALS CERTIFIED TO THIS COURT A QUESTION OF GREAT PUBLIC IMPORTANCE:

"Do <u>CONNER v. CONNER</u>, <u>Supra</u>, and <u>KUVIN v.</u> <u>KUVIN, Supra</u>, limit the scope of <u>Appellate</u> review enunciated in <u>CANAKARIS v. CANAKARIS</u>, 382 So.2d 1197 (FLA. 1980)?

ABBREVIATIONS USED HEREIN SHALL INCLUDE "R", FOR RECORD ON APPEAL AND "A", FOR RESPONDENT'S APPENDIX.

STATEMENT OF THE FACTS

At the time of the Final Hearing the parties were married thirteen and one-half (13 1/2) years and had a son thirteen (13) years of age and a daughter eleven (11) years of age.

At the Temporary Relief Hearing on July 8, 1981, the PARTIES STIPULATED THAT THE WIFE WOULD HAVE TEMPORARY EXCLUSIVE POSSESSION OF THE MARITAL HOME, THAT THE WIFE WOULD HAVE THE TEMPORARY CUSTODY OF THE MINOR CHILDREN, THAT THE HUSBAND WOULD PAY MORTGAGE PAYMENTS ON THE MARITAL DOMICILE, HEALTH, MEDICAL, AND DENTAL INSURANCE WITH THE WIFE AND MINOR CHILDREN, AUTOMOBILE PAYMENTS, TAGS, INSURANCE, AND REPAIRS FOR THE WIFE'S AUTOMOBILE, AND THAT SHE WOULD HAVE THE TEMPORARY EXCLUSIVE USE OF HER AUTOMOBILE. THE HUSBAND ALSO AGREED TO PAY FOR THE GAS AND OIL FOR THE WIFE'S AUTOMOBILE. (R.PGS. 117-119, 121-122) AS ADDITIONAL TEMPORARY RELIEF THE COURT ORDERED THE HUSBAND TO PAY Two Hundred and Fifty Dollars (\$250,00) per week as unallocated ALIMONY AND CHILD SUPPORT. BY THE WIFE'S FINANCIAL AFFIDAVIT WITHOUT INCLUDING THE AUTOMOBILE PAYMENTS THE TEMPORARY AWARD AMOUNTED TO TWENTY TWO HUNDRED AND FORTY FIVE DOLLARS (\$2,245.00) PER MONTH TO THE WIFE AND MINOR CHILDREN.

-4-

The Husband complained in January of 1982 in his Motion For Relief that he was unable to comply with the Court's temporary Orders because of his declining business. (R.Pgs. 143-144) In reality the Husband's business at the time of his Motion For Relief was doing very well. (R.Pgs. 183-186, 393) The financial data through March 31, 1982, is the last production made by the Husband and offered into evidence. Although the Husband complained at the Trial that his business suffered, no business records were produced or entered into evidence to substantiate these claims, and no relief from the temporary Order was obtained.

The Assets of the parties included the marital home with an equity of approximately Fifty Two Thousand Dollars (\$52,000.00) (R.Pgs. 490, 177-178) The Husband owned an interest in several businesses which were acquired during the marriage of the parties including Draughon and Marcoux Interior Contractors, Inc., Draughon and Marcoux, Inc., and others. Although the Husband sought to establish at Trial that these businesses combined were only worth Eighty Thousand Dollars (\$80,000.00), the Wife's accountant testified that the fair Market value of the Husband's interest in these businesses combined totaled Two Hundred and Ninety Two Thousand Five Hundred Dollars (\$292,500.00). (R.Pg. 394) The Husband never produced the receivable ledgers of these comapnies but he admitted to approximately Forty Three Thousand Dollars (\$43,000.00) of receivables which brought the book value of the companies total to Two Hundred and Thirty Thousand Dollars (\$230,000.00), not

-5-

INCLUDING ONE HUNDRED THOUSAND DOLLARS (\$100,000.00) IN LOANS TO SHAREHOLDERS, OF WHICH THE HUSBAND'S INTEREST WOULD BE ONE HUNDRED AND FIFTEEN THOUSAND DOLLARS (\$115,000.00). (R.Pg. 695) THE HUSBAND AND HIS PARTNER HAD A BUY/SELL AGREEMENT WHICH INDICATED THE HUSBAND'S INTEREST IN THE BUSINESSES WAS TWO HUNDRED THOUSAND DOLLARS (\$200,000.00), (R.Pg. 709) AND THE HUSBAND'S ACCOUNTANT EVEN ADMITTED THAT THE STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY IN THE COMPANY WAS THREE HUNDRED THOUSAND DOLLARS (\$300,000.00) AFTER TAXES MAKING THE HUSBAND'S INTEREST ONE HUNDRED AND FIFTY THOUSAND DOLLARS (\$150,000.00). (R.Pg. 537)

The Husband also owned interests in Draughon and Marcoux Investments, Inc. worth to the Husband Twenty Nine Thousand Three Hundred Dollars (\$29,300.00) (R.Pg. 615) and Bella Vista, Inc. worth to the Husband Fifty One Thousand Three Hundred Dollars (\$51,300.00) (R.Pgs. 490, 586) The Court should note that the Husband evaluated his interest in Bella Vista, Inc. at Fifty Six Thousand Dollars (\$56,000.00) (R.Pg. 615).

TAKING THE EVIDENCE IN THE LIGHT MOST FAVORABLE TO THE WIFE'S POSITION THE MAJOR ASSETS OF THE PARTIES HAD EQUITY OF APPROXIMATELY FOUR HUNDRED AND TWENTY FIVE THOUSAND DOLLARS (\$425,000.00).

THE WIFE HAS LITTLE WORK EXPERIENCE, BUT WORKED DURING THE MARRIAGE DURING TIMES OF NEED SUCH AS WHEN THE HUSBAND WAS LAYED OFF OR STARTING HIS BUSINESS. THE WIFE NEVER MADE MORE

-6-

THAN A MINIMUM WAGE AND ALWAYS QUIT HER JOBS WHEN THE HUSBAND ASKED HER TO. (R.PGS. 371-372, 684-686) PRIMARILY, THE WIFE OCCUPIED THE ROLE OF THE TRADITIONAL HOUSEWIFE AND MOTHER AND HELPED THE HUSBAND WITH BOOK WORK AND ERRANDS WHILE HE STARTED HIS BUSINESS VENTURES. THE WIFE ALSO EXPRESSED A DESIRE TO STAY AT HOME AND CARE FOR HER CHILDREN DURING THEIR MINORITY, (R.PGS. 377-379) WHICH DURING THE MARRIAGE WAS THE HUSBAND'S PREFERENCE. (R.PG. 373)

ON THE OTHER HAND, THE HUSBAND HAD ACQUIRED SUBSTANTIAL ABILITIES TO MAKE A LIVING DURING THE MARRIAGE. FOR THE YEAR PRECEDING THE FINAL HEARING IN THIS CAUSE FROM APRIL 1, 1981, THROUGH MARCH 31, 1982, THE HUSBAND TOOK AN AVERAGE OF SEVENTY NINE HUNDRED AND SIXTY EIGHT DOLLARS (\$7,968.00) PER MONTH FROM HIS BUSINESSES. (R.Pg. 406) DESPITE THESE DRAWS, THE HUSBAND'S BUSINESSES WERE STILL IN A SOLVENT AND PRODUCING CONDITION. (R.Pgs. 406-407) IN ADDITION, THERE IS UNREBUTTED EVIDENCE IN THE RECORD THAT THE HUSBAND HAD INCOME NOT REFLECTED ON HIS LEDGER SHEETS. (R.PGS. 702-703, 738-739) THE EVIDENCE FURTHER SHOWED THAT DRAUGHON AND MARCOUX, INC. HAD A BEFORE TAX INCOME FOR THE FISCAL SIX (6) MONTHS ENDING MARCH 31, 1982, OF ONE HUNDRED AND FIFTY EIGHT THOUSAND SIX HUNDRED DOLLARS (\$158,600.00) (R.PG. 393).

The Final Judgment executed by the learned Trial Judge on November 22, 1982, provides, inter alia, that as and for permanent

-7-

PERIODIC ALIMONY THE HUSBAND SHALL PAY TO THE WIFE THE SUM OF TWELVE HUNDRED AND FIFTY DOLLARS (\$1,250.00) PER MONTH WITH AN AUTOMATIC REDUCTION AT THE TIME THE MINOR CHILDREN OF THE PARTIES ARE EMANCIPATED TO SEVEN HUNDRED AND FIFTY DOLLARS (\$750.00) PER MONTH. THE FINAL JUDGMENT ALSO AWARDS THE WIFE A ONE HUNDRED THOUSAND DOLLAR (\$100,000.00) LUMP SUM ALIMONY PAYABLE ANNUALLY WITH ACCUMULATED INTEREST ON A DECLINING BALANCE AT THE RATE OF EIGHT PERCENT (8%) PAYABLE YEARLY FOR TEN (10) YEARS.

The only substantial lump sum award which the Wife received at the time of the Final Judgment was one-half of the Fifty Two Thousand Dollar (\$52,000.00) equity in her home. This left the Husband with approximately Three Hundred and Seventy Three Thousand Dollars (\$373,000.00) in assets from which he would have to pay the Wife One Hundred Thousand Dollars (\$100,000.00) with eight percent (8%) interest over a period of ten (10) years. If the Husband's Draws from his business were to continue as they did for the year prior to the Trial of this cause, his first year's payments to his Wife including the lump sum alimony award with interest and the attorney's fee award would amount to approximately one-half of his draws with the amount in the second year for alimony and child support including the lump sum award being less than forty percent (40%) of his draws.

-8-

This Court should also take note of the fact that although the Wife's attorney and experts were awarded Ninety Six Hundred and Fifty Dollars (\$9,650.00) that the Wife's attorney expended 103.25 hours in the case through the Trial and Sixty Two Hundred and Twenty One Dollars and Thirty Nine Cents (\$6,221.39) in costs. The amounts awarded to the Wife's attorney are less than sixty five percent (65%) of what was sought. (R.Pg. 307-311)

<u>ARGUMENT</u>

DO <u>CONNER v. CONNER</u>, 439 So.2d 887 (FLA. 1983) AND <u>KUVIN v. KUVIN</u>, 442 So.2d 203 (FLA. 1983), LIMIT THE SCOPE OF APPELLATE REVIEW ENUNCIATED IN <u>CANAKARIS v. CANAKARIS</u>, 382 So.2d 1197 (FLA. 1980)?

The Brief filed by the Husband Herein, The Academy Of FLORIDA TRIAL LAWYERS, AND THE FAMILY LAW SECTION OF THE FLORIDA BAR ALL ARGUE THAT THE QUESTION CERTIFIED TO BE OF GREAT PUBLIC IMPORTANCE SHOULD BE ANSWERED IN THE NEGATIVE. THE WIFE AGREES. THE AREA OF DEPARTURE, WHICH IS WHY THE HUSBAND AND THE WIFE ARE HERE, IS IN THE INTERPRETATION OF THE FACTS WHICH WERE HEARD BY THE LEARNED TRIAL JUDGE UPON WHICH HE BASED HIS DECISIONS. THE WIFE SUBMITS THAT WHERE, AS HERE, THERE IS SUBSTANTIAL COMPETENT EVIDENCE IN THE RECORD FROM WHICH THE TRIAL COURT COULD HAVE REACHED THE CONCLUSION IT DID, THAT THE TRIAL COURT MUST BE AFFIRMED BY THE DISTRICT COURTS OF APPEAL, HOWEVER RELUCTANTLY, BECAUSE IT IS NOT THE FUNCTION OF APPELLATE TRIBUNALS TO SUBSTITUTE THEIR VIEW OF THE FACTS FOR THE TRIAL COURT'S.

IN <u>SAFFOLD BROS, PRODUCE CO. v. WINN & LOVETT GROCERY</u> <u>CO.</u> et al, 149 SO.1 (FLA. 1933) THIS COURT OPINED:

> "THE CASE TURNED UPON QUESTIONS OF FACT. THE EVIDENCE WAS FULL, NOT TO SAY VOLUMIN-OUS. THERE APPEAR IN IT MANY SUSPICIOUS CIRCUMSTANCES WHICH SEEM TO JUSTIFY THE

> > -10-

BRINGING OF THE SUIT, BUT IT IS NOT PROPER NOR WITHIN THE POWER OF THIS COURT WHERE THE EVIDENCE DOES NOT CLEARLY DISCLOSE ERROR IN THE CHANCELLOR'S FINDINGS AND CONCLUSIONS TO SUBSTITUTE ITS JUDGMENT FOR THAT OF THE CHANCELLOR. NOR EVEN WHERE THE EVIDENCE IS CONFLICTING IS IT WITHIN THE PROVINCE OF THIS COURT TO SET ASIDE THE CHANCELLOR'S FINDINGS UPON THE FACTS AND SUBSTITUTE FOR THEM THE OPINION OF THIS COURT AS TO THE DEDUCTIONS WHICH. SHOULD BE DRAWN FROM THE FACTS AS IT VIEWS SUCH IS NOT THE PROVINCE OF AN THEM. ITS DOMAIN OF AUTHORITY APPELLATE COURT. LIES WITHIN THAT FIELD IN WHICH THE APPELLANT HAS MADE IT CLEARLY TO APPEAR THAT THE CHANCELLOR HAS ERRED SUBSTANTIALLY SEE WATERMAN TO THE INJURY OF THE APPELLANT. V. HIGGINS, 28 FLA. 660, 10 So. 97; BOTHAMLY <u>v. QUEAL</u>, 58 FLA. 396, 50 So. 415; <u>THEISEN v.</u> <u>WHIDDON</u>, 60 FLA. 372, 53 So. 642; <u>SHAD v. SMITH</u>, 74 FLA. 324, 76 So. 897; <u>GUGGENHEIMER v.</u> <u>DAVIDSON</u>, 74 FLA. 485, 77 So. 266; <u>SANDLIN v.</u> <u>HUNTER CO.</u>, 70 FLA. 514, 70 So. 553; <u>ROUTH v.</u> <u>RICHARDS</u>, 103 FLA. 757, 138 So. 72; <u>HEINISCH</u> 100 FLA. 1600, 132 So. 109; LESNOFF BECKER, 101 FLA. 716, 135 So. 146; EMPIRE MBER CO. v. MORRIS, 102 FLA. 226, 135 So. 508.

SEE ALSO <u>DURHAM v. DURHAM</u>, 188 So. 609 (FLA. 1939) AND <u>PARSONS et al. v. FEDERAL REALTY CORPORATION et al</u>, 143 So. 912 (FLA. 1931).

INDEED, IN <u>GOLDFARB v. ROBERTSON</u>, 82 So.2D 504 (FLA 1955) THIS COURT HELD:

> "NO AUTHORITY NEEDS TO BE CITED FOR THE PROP-OSITION THAT THIS COURT IS NOT ENTITLED TO SUBSTITUTE ITS JUDGMENT FOR THAT OF THE TRIAL COURT ON QUESTIONS OF FACT, LIKEWISE OF THE CREDIBILITY OF THE WITNESSES AS WELL AS THE WEIGHT TO BE GIVEN TO THE EVIDENCE BY THE TRIAL COURT."

IN <u>BRENNER v. SMULLIAN</u>, 34 So.2d 44 (FLA. 1955) THIS COURT AGAIN CONCLUDED:

> "ON APPEAL THIS COURT DOES NOT DECIDE A CASE BASED UPON HOW THEY WOULD HAVE DECIDED THE CASE HAD THEY HEARD THE ORIGINAL TESTI-MONY, BUT ONLY WHETHER THERE WAS SUFFICIENT EVIDENCE IN THE RECORD TO JUSTIFY THE LOWER COURT'S DECISION."

The Wife submits that there is nothing which has rendered antiquated the above stated general principles regarding the scope of Appellate review in areas committed to the Court's discretion. In fact, with the ever growing case loads in Appellate Courts it is submitted that the rationale behind the above stated principles is further embellished. More recently this Court has and continues to reverse District Courts Of Appeal where they seek in reviewing the facts to substitute their judgment for that of the Trial Judge. See CRAIN & CROUSE, INC. v. PALM BAY TOWERS CORPORATION, 326 So.2D 182 (FLA. 1976), SHAW v. SHAW, 334 So.2D 13 (FLA. 1976), HERZOG v. HERZOG, 346 So.2D 56 (FLA. 1977), ROSENBERG v. ROSENBERG, 371 So.2D 672 (FLA. 1979), CONNER v. CONNER, 439 So.2D 887 (FLA. 1983), and KUVIN v. KUVIN, 442 So.2D 203 (FLA. 1983).

IN ITS DECISION IN THE INSTANT CASE THE FOURTH DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL OPINES:

-12-

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